
Question # RFP Location Question Response

1 General Is an extension of the due date possible? 

A complete package (Technical, Cost, and Administrative 
Proposals) must be received by 12:00 P.M. ET on

April 28, 2025.

2 General

Throughout the document “The solution must [...]” and “The 
system should [...]” are used.  Are these being used 

interchangeably? 
These terms are not used interchangeably.  Must is used to indicate 

a requirement.  Should is used to indicate a preference.

3 General

Throughout the document “The solution must [...]” and “The 
system should [...]” are used.  Are we to understand ‘must’ to 

mean a mandatory requirement, and ‘should’ to be a preferred 
functionality? 

Must is used to indicate a requirement.  Should is used to indicate a 
preference.

4 General
Has the NYSOIG identified any providers who meet all their 

listed requirements?  Qualified proposers are being sought via this procurement.

5 General
Does the OIG require real-time two-way data exchange with 

external systems, or is periodic batch processing acceptable? 

Please review the data exchange information in RFP Amendment 1, 
Section 5.1.1.1 and all other data exchange sections up to RFP 

Section 5.1.1.8.3 and note the number of exchanges may change in 
the future.

6 Pg 33: 5.8 Security How will we handle single sign-on/authentication? See RFP Section 5.8.

7
Pg 24: 5.2.3 Legacy 

System Migration
What format our we currently using for case data in 

LawManager?

Information regarding LawManager can be found in RFP Section 2 
and at the following link:  

https://help.mitracloud.com/LawManager/6.4/LMWeb/lawmanager.h
tm#product_basics/

8
Pg 24: 5.2.3 Legacy 

System Migration Is our data in LawManager on spreadsheet form?

Information regarding LawManager can be found in RFP Section 2 
and at the following link:  

https://help.mitracloud.com/LawManager/6.4/LMWeb/lawmanager.h
tm#product_basics/

9
Pg 24: 5.2.3 Legacy 

System Migration
Will the vendor be responsible for de-duplicating and cleaning 

legacy data prior to migration? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

10
Pg 24: 5.2.3 Legacy 

System Migration

Should vendors provide pricing to store in our cloud 
environment the “Approximately 6 TB of various case-related 

documents stored on the existing network storage drive”? See Form 1: Cost Proposal

11 Pg 32: Security

Are there additional compliance frameworks beyond HIPAA, 
NIST 800-53, and NYS Public Officers Law that the CMS must 

adhere to? See RFP Section 5.8.

12 Pg 63

CONTRACTOR staff assigned to work on this project shall be 
subject to approval by OIG – what are the OIG’s approval of 

staff based on?
OIG reserves the right to require security clearance and criminal 

history checks of the contractor and/or staff.

13 Pg 32: Security
What are the specific NYS Office of Information Technology 

Services (NYSOITS) security standards that must be followed? See RFP Section 5.8.

14
Pg 5: 1.2 Statement of 

Need
Can OIG provide example workflow diagrams for current and 

future state processes to guide implementation? See RFP Appendix G and H.
15 Pg 87 NYSOIG will be procuring 250 user licenses? See RFP Section 5.7.1 and Form 1:  Cost Proposal.
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16 Pg 31

“OIG estimates that approximately 1,000 hours for solution 
enhancements and/or change requests spread over the life of 

the contract to complete solution enhancements/change 
requests may be necessary” - Does NYSOIG prefer vendors to 
provide pricing for these hours in our quote, or to provide our 

hourly price should solution enhancements be required. See Form 1: Cost Proposal

17 Pg 25: 5.3 Training
What are the expected training formats—in-person, virtual, 

recorded, or hybrid?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

18 Pg 25: 5.3 Training

Training: What level of hands-on training will be required for 
different user groups (e.g., investigators, case managers, IT 

support)?  See RFP Section 5.3.

19 Pg 25: 5.3 Training
Is there a requirement for training ongoing beyond the 300 

hours outlined in the RFP? See RFP Section 5.3.

20 Pg 25: 5.3 Training

What training documentation is expected from 
vendors—standard user manuals, interactive training modules, 

or a knowledge base?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

21
Pg 37: G. Technical 

Proposal
 Will data migration need to be completed within 270 days of 

contract approval? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

22
Pg 37: G. Technical 

Proposal

We believe our solution can be fully implemented within 270 
days of contract approval.  In the event NYSOIG causes 
delays to implementation will the vendor be penalized? See RFP Section 5.9.

23 Pg 27

“[...] Selected Proposer must secure a dedicated team to 
support OIG in the initial development of a custom CMS.” - 
What is the expectation for a COTS product? Will COTS 

products require a dedicated team as well? OIG outlines its expectations in RFP Section 1.2 and Section 3.

24 Pg 27

“[...] Selected Proposer must secure a dedicated team to 
support OIG in the initial development of a custom CMS.” - can 

you define what is meant by dedicated?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

25 Pg 27

“[...] Selected Proposer must secure a dedicated team to 
support OIG in the initial development of a custom CMS.” - can 

dedicated staff continue to work on other projects as well as 
the implementation of NYSOIG’s CMS?

This information should be provided as part of the proposers 
Technical Proposal.

26 Pg 29 (end of pg)

in the matrix that ends on P.29 it shows the general public 
should be able to “View general and public information”.  Is the 
general public expected to have access to information housed 

within the CMS? This information will not be shared prior to contract award.

27 Pg 29 (end of pg)

in the matrix that ends on P.29 it shows the general public 
should be able to “View general and public information”.  If yes 
to the above, what information is the general public expected 

to have access to? This information will not be shared prior to contract award.

28 Pg 29
Please describe the functionality the general public is to have 

in the CMS.
See RFP Amendment 1, Section 5.1.1.1, and RFP Sections 

5.1.2.15 and 5.7.2.

29
Pg 33: Offline 
Functionality Will NYSOIG consider solutions without offline functionality? See Amendment 1, Section 5.1.2.9.

30
Pg 12-16: 5.1.1.4 

Investigations
Is the integration between the proposed solution and PMI 

Evidence Tracker bi-directional?
The integration between the proposed solution and data exchanges 

are bi-directional.



31
Pg 12-16: 5.1.1.4 

Investigations
Please describe the use case of the proposed solution’s 

integration with PMI evidence tracker. See RFP Section 5.1.1.8.1.

32
Pg 12-16: 5.1.1.4 

Investigations

Is the integration/connection to data exchanges (Lexis Nexis 
Accurint, NYS eJustice, PMI Evidence Tracker, NYS DCJS 
Law Enforcement Statute Directory, and Adobe Acrobat) bi-

directional?
The integration between the proposed solution and data exchanges 

are bi-directional.

33
Pg 12-16: 5.1.1.4 

Investigations

Please describe the use case of the proposed solution’s 
integration with/connection to data exchanges (Lexis Nexis 
Accurint, NYS eJustice, PMI Evidence Tracker, NYS DCJS 
Law Enforcement Statute Directory, and Adobe Acrobat)

See RFP Section 5.1.1.4. Also note that the number of exchanges 
may change in the future.

34
Pg 9: 5.1.1.1 Complaint 

Intake

a.	“Capability to receive and record complaints from a 
dedicated shared mailbox” - Is the described functionality 
meant to automatically record complaints sent to a shared 

mailbox without the involvement of NYSOIG staff?
b.	“Capability to receive and record complaints from a 

dedicated shared mailbox” - Will the NYSOIG consider 
solutions where NYSOIG staff would enter the emailed 

complaint information into the CMS?
c.	“Automatically search itself for existing complaint records” - 

does this mean the system automatically searches for existing 
records without a staff member initiating a search?

d.	“Automatically search itself for existing complaint records” - 
will the NYSOIG consider solutions where a staff member 

initiates a search within the CMS?
See RFP Amendment 1, Section 5.1.1.1

35

Pg 11: 5.1.1.3 Complaint 
Processing & 
Advancement

a.	“Generate and assign separate identifiers for each staff 
member or entity” - can you please describe the use case of 

this requirement?
b.	“Sends and receives documents electronically via email and 

automatically log when documents are sent and received” - 
Will documents be sent to licensed users or non-users?

c.	“Sends and receives documents electronically via email and 
automatically log when documents are sent and received” - will 
NYSOIG consider solutions that do not have the functionality 
to receive documents via email, but with the functionality for 

users to upload documents into the system?
A.  See Section 5.1.1.3.  B.  Documents will be sent to licensed 

users and non-users.  C.  This information should be provided as 
part of the proposers Technical Proposal.

36
Pg 12: 5.1.1.5 
Investigations

a.	What other data exchanges with the proposed solution 
need to connect to besides the data exchanges listed: Lexis 
Nexis Accurint, NYS eJustice, PMI Evidence Tracker, NYS 

DCJS Law Enforcement Statute Directory, and Adobe 
Acrobat?

See RFP Section 5.1.1.4. Also note that the number of exchanges 
may change in the future.



37
Pg 15: 5.1.1.8.1 

Evidence

a.	“Development of an OIG electronic evidence tracking 
system” - does this refer to the evidence management 

functionalities in the proposed solution, or does the NYSOIG 
desire an independent electronic evidence tracking system to 

be developed in addition to the proposed solution?
OIG uses and intends to use an independent system.  See RFP 

Section 5.1.1.8.1.

38 Pg 17: 5.1.1.8.3 FOIL

a.	Will NYSOIG consider a solution without a separate 
module for FOIL? This solution would have role based access 

controls so FOIL requests and records could only be 
viewed/accessed by permitted users.

b.	“Facilitate communication between requestors and the 
agency” - can you describe the planned use-case?

c.	“Facilitate communication between requestors and the 
agency” - does NYSOIG need the CMS to have a functionality 
where NYSOIG staff and non-users can communicate via the 

CMS, as in a chat functionality?
d.	Will the NYSOIG consider solutions that do not have 

redaction capabilities?
See RFP Section 5.1.1.8.3.

39

Pg 19: 5.1.2.4 
Communication and 

Calendaring

a.	Will NYSOIG consider solutions that do not have the 
functionality for users to send/receive/archive messages?

b.	Will NYSOIG consider solutions without the functionality to 
integrate with messaging platforms?

c.	Will NYSOIG consider solutions without integrated 
calendars?

See RFP Section 5.1.2.4.

40
Pg 19: 5.1.2.7 Artificial 

Intelligence

a.	Will NYSOIG consider proposed solutions that do not 
leverage AI?

b.	“The solution must leverage advanced artificial intelligence 
(AI) technologies to enhance the system’s analytical and 

reporting capabilities” - Can you elaborate on this 
requirement?

c.	“The system should offer predictive analytics to forecast case 
outcomes, identify potential issues, and suggest proactive 

measures” - Has NYSOIG identified providers with this 
functionality?

d.	“Additionally, the system should support automated report 
generation and distribution, reducing manual effort and 
ensuring timely access to critical information” - Can you 
elaborate on how AI is to be used in this requirement? It 

seems that what is being described can be accomplished 
without AI.

See RFP Amendment 1, Section 5.1.2.7.

41
Pg 8-9: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution
Can you provide more detail on the specific workflows that 

OIG expects to be automated within the CMS? See RFP Appendix G and H.

42
Pg 7: Current State & 

Future State

Are there any specific integrations with existing or legacy 
systems that the OIG prefers, or should the proposed solution 

be able to integrate with any systems?
See RFP Section 5.1.1.4. Also note that the number of exchanges 

may change in the future.



43
Pg 9: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution

What level of customization is expected for the user interface 
and workflows, given that OIG requires a user-friendly 

interface?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

44
Pg 9: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution

What specific reporting metrics or dashboards would OIG like 
to see out-of-the-box, or should these be custom-built based 

on OIG’s operational needs?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

45 Pg 31: Security

Could you elaborate on the specific data privacy or security 
standards that need to be followed for compliance with New 

York State regulations (e.g., FOIL compliance, Public Officers 
Law)? See RFP Section 5.7.1-5.7.5 and 5.8.

46 Pg 29: Security

Does OIG require a specific type of audit trail functionality for 
tracking user access and changes, and how granular does the 

audit trail need to be?
See RFP Section 5.8.  This information should be provided as part 

of the proposers Technical Proposal.

47

Pg 24-25: Scope of 
Work: Legacy System 

Migration

What are the data migration expectations for the current 
LawManager system, and is there a preference for handling 

data mapping, cleansing, and validation?

Information regarding LawManager can be found in RFP Section 2 
and at the following link:  

https://help.mitracloud.com/LawManager/6.4/LMWeb/lawmanager.h
tm#product_basics/

48
Pg 12: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution

Are there any additional third-party systems (e.g., Lexis Nexis, 
PMI Evidence Tracker) that the OIG wants the new CMS to 

integrate with beyond what’s listed in the RFP?
See RFP Section 5.1.1.4. Also note that the number of exchanges 

may change in the future.

49
Pg 10-11: Scope of 

Work: SaaS Solution

Can you provide more details about the phased approach to 
system implementation? Is it acceptable for certain 

functionalities to be rolled out incrementally rather than fully 
operational from day one? See RFP Section 5.2.1.

50
Pg 10: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution

Given the timeline (270 days), does OIG have any flexibility on 
the implementation schedule for certain phases, such as data 

migration or system testing? See RFP Section 5.2.1.

51
Pg 25: Scope of Work: 

Training

What is the preferred training delivery method for OIG staff 
(e.g., in-person, remote, hybrid), and are there any particular 

tools or platforms OIG prefers for training tracking?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

52
Pg 25: Scope of Work: 

Training
Will OIG need ongoing training throughout the contract period, 

or is the initial training expected to suffice? See RFP Section 5.3

53
Pg 6: MWBE and 

SDVOB Participation

Is there any flexibility in the MWBE participation requirement, 
particularly in cases where a proposer might have a strong 

existing relationship with a non-MWBE vendor? See RFP Section 11.3 and 13.7-13.7.3 and associated forms.

54

Pg 12-13: Scope of 
Work: Project 
Management

Are there specific tools or platforms OIG uses for project 
management that should be integrated or accounted for in the 

implementation plan (e.g., collaboration tools, task 
management systems)?

OIG does not have a project/task management tool and does not 
have a preferred tool.

55
Pg 12: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution

Should the system support full offline functionality, allowing 
investigators to access and update case information without 

an internet connection? See RFP Amendment 1, Section 5.1.2.9.

56
Pg 18: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution
Should the system include optical character recognition (OCR) 

capabilities for document searchability?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

57
Pg 9: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution

Should the system provide automated routing of complaints 
based on predefined criteria (e.g., type of complaint, agency 

involved, severity level)?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.



58
Pg 9: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution
Are there any restrictions on external public access to 

complaint intake portals, such as authentication requirements? See RFP Section 5.7.3 and 5.8.

59
Pg 17-18: Scope of 

Work: SaaS Solution
Should the CMS provide automated anomaly detection for 

unusual access patterns or data modifications?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

60
Pg 31: Scope of Work: 

SaaS Solution
Will OIG require automated alerts or reports for compliance 

violations? See RFP Section 5.1.2.13.

61
Pg 5: 1.2 Statement of 

Need

Can you confirm if the OIG would accept a cloud-hosted PaaS 
(Platform-as-a-Service) solution that offers similar benefits to 

SaaS? See RFP Section 1.2.

62
Pg 27: 5.7.1 Hosting and 

Licensing

Will OIG accept a solution where the hosting provider (AWS) 
meets compliance requirements, even if the specific 
application itself is not independently CJIS certified? CJIS certification is not a requirement.

63
Pg 27: 5.7.1 Hosting and 

Licensing
Are there additional security requirements beyond AWS 

compliance that the proposer must meet? See RFP Section 5.8.

64
Pg 7: 4.1. Minimum 

Qualifications

Will OIG consider vendors with four years of experience if they 
demonstrate successful implementations and qualifications in 

providing SaaS in government agencies with similar case 
management needs?

Experience that is less then the Minimum Qualifications described 
in RFP Section 4.1 will not be accepted.

65
Pg 7: 4.1. Minimum 

Qualifications
Can experience gained by the company’s leadership in prior 

roles be counted toward the five-year requirement? See RFP Section 4.1.

66
Pg 24: 5.2.3 Legacy 

System Migration
Does OIG have a preferred data migration strategy, or will the 

selected vendor define this approach? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

67
Pg 24: 5.2.3 Legacy 

System Migration
Can OIG clarify the expected timeline and level of data 

transformation required for the migration? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

68
Pg 19: 5.1.2.7 Artificial 

Intelligence
Is AI-powered case classification and document extraction a 
requirement, or is it considered an optional enhancement? See RFP Amendment 1, Section 5.1.2.7.

69
Pg 19: 5.1.2.7 Artificial 

Intelligence
Does OIG prefer built-in AI or integration with third-party AI 

tools (e.g., LexisNexis Accurint)?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

70

Pg 5: 1.2 Statement of 
Need (also pg 19: 
5.1.2.3. Workflow 

Automation)

Can OIG clarify whether extensive customization is expected, 
or if a configurable no-code/low-code platform would meet the 

requirement?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

71

Pg 5: 1.2 Statement of 
Need (also pg 19: 
5.1.2.3. Workflow 

Automation)

Would a solution that allows internal staff to configure 
workflows without vendor involvement be considered an 

advantage?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

72

Pg 5: 1.2 Statement of 
Need (also pg 19: 
5.1.2.3. Workflow 

Automation)

Are you open to a customizable case management platform, 
or are you only considering an out-of-the-box legal case 

management solution with minor customizations?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

73
Pg 12-16: 5.1.1.4 

Investigations
Will OIG facilitate access to these external systems for 

integration testing during implementation?
Yes, OIG will facilitate access to external systems for integration 

testing during implementation.

74
Pg 12-16: 5.1.1.4 

Investigations
Does OIG require pre-built connectors, or is a standard API-

based integration acceptable?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.



75
Pg 1: Anticipated 

Contract Term
What are the key performance criteria that OIG will use to 

determine whether to extend the contract beyond five years?
OIG can extend the contract term at its sole discretion and with 

approval of the State Comptroller

76
Pg 1: Anticipated 

Contract Term
Will the vendor be required to support solution upgrades 

during the contract term as part of the base pricing? Yes.  See RFP Section 5.7.1.

77 Pg 1: MWBE Goal
Can a vendor meet this requirement through partnerships and 

subcontractors, or is direct MWBE certification required? See RFP Section 13.7-13.7.3 and associated forms.

78 Pg 1: MWBE Goal
If MWBE participation is not fully met, what is the process for 

requesting a waiver? See RFP Form 5.5.

79
General award 

amount/budget range

The RFP does not provide an anticipated award amount or a 
budget range for the 5 year contract period; Can you provide 

insight into the budget range allocated for this RFP? 
Understanding the financial scope will help us tailor our 

proposal to align with the agency's expectations and deliver 
the most value; A budget has not been allocated for this project.

80
General award 

amount/budget range

Could you provide the annual contract amount for the 
incumbent LawManager that was used as the investigative 

case management software?
OIG will not release this information through the Question and 

Answer process.

81

Pg 22: 5.1.2.18 
Architecture Scalability & 

Flexibility

The RFP mentioned StateRAMP or FedRAMP compliances for 
the solution. Are there any other specific compliance 

requirements pertaining to this RFP that would substantiate a 
more robust system for the state? See RFP Section 5.7, 5.7.1 and 5.8.

82

Pg 22: 5.1.2.18 
Architecture Scalability & 

Flexibility

Can you confirm whether the proposed solution must be CJIS-
compliant? If so, are there specific security requirements or 
certification processes that the agency expects vendors to 

meet? See RFP Section 5.7, 5.7.1 and 5.8.

83
Pg 22: 5.2.1. 

Implementation Plan

Can you provide more details on the expected timeline for 
implementation - does the agency have specific milestone 

expectations or a phased rollout plan? See Section 5.2.1.

84
Pg 22: 5.2.1. 

Implementation Plan

Is the city expecting to completely phase out the incumbent 
solution “LawManager”? Or this transition would be a phased 

approach? Yes, OIG intends to end use of LawManager.

85
Pg 9: 5.1.1.1 Complaint 

Intake

Could you please elaborate on the third-party systems 
required as an intake for complaints via. information 

exchanges? Are standard APIs expected to be the integration 
mechanisms for these or out-of-the-box connectors are 

preferred? See RFP Amendment 1, Section 5.1.1.1

86
Pg 12: 5.1.1.4 
Investigations

Could you please confirm if the OIG workflows require multiple 
reviewers/approvers on a single stage of the complaint / case 

workflow?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

87

Pg 11: 5.1.1.3 Complaint 
Processing & 
Advancement

Is the system expected to identify the duplicate cases and link 
them automatically?

This information should be provided as part of the proposers 
Technical Proposal.

88

Pg 11: 5.1.1.3 Complaint 
Processing & 
Advancement

Is this required as a configuration for the admin to set up the 
deduplication logic or the end user is expected to identify 

duplicates through search and merge them manually?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.



89 General

Has the agency conducted any proof-of-concept projects 
related to Investigative Case Management Software in the 

past? If yes, could you please share the name of the software 
and any shortcomings encountered during those POCs. No proof of concept work has been conducted.

90

5.7.5. Business 
Continuity C. Disaster 

Recovery
Does the agency have a Data Warehouse tool or have 

preference on Data Warehouse tool?
OIG does not have a Data Warehouse tool and does not have a 

preferred tool.

91
5.1.2.5 User Dashboards 

and Analytics
Does the agency have a Reporting and Analytics tool or have 

preference on Reporting and Analytics tool?
OIG does not have a Reporting and Analytics tool and does not 

have a preferred tool.

92
5.2.2.2 Workflow 

Process Management
Does the agency have an Electronic Document Management 

System (EDMS)or have preference on EDMS? OIG does not have a EDMS and does not have a preferred tool.

93
5.2.2.2 Workflow 

Process Management
Does the agency have a tool to Digitally Sign the documents ? 

Or have preferences like Acrobat Reader, DocuSign? OIG prefers to continue the use of Adobe Acrobat.

94 5.8 Security

Does the agency use Active Directory to authorize and 
authenticate users to use the OIG Systems currently? If so, is 

Active Directory hosted in Azure cloud? Please let us know 
how the users are authorized / authenticated currently to use 

the LawManager and Other applications.
OIG does utilize Active Directory.  OIG does not use Azure.  

LawManager uses separate credentials for login.

95 5.1.2.10 Data Integration
Does the agency have an Enterprise Service Bus or have 

preference on ESB tools?
OIG does not have a Enterprise Service Bus and does not have a 

preferred ESB tool.

96
5.1.2.2. Task 
Management

Does the agency have a project management / task 
management tool or have preference on project management / 

task management tools?
OIG does not have a project/task management tool and does not 

have a preferred tool.

97
5.1.2.4. Communication 

and Calendaring
What calendars are being used by agency users currently? Is 

it the MS Outlook calendar or other calendars? See RFP Section 5.1.2.4.

98
5.1.2.4. Communication 

and Calendaring
What email messaging tools are being used by agency users 

currently? Is it the MS Outlook or others? See RFP Section 5.1.2.4.

99
5.1.2.10. Data 

Integration
Does the agency have or use any other integration tools or 

have preference on integration tools?
OIG does not have a data integration tool and does not have a 

preferred tool.

100
5.1.2.10. Data 

Integration

Some of  the systems to be integrated seem to be products 
(Lexis Nexis Accurint, PMI Evidence Tracker, Adobe Acrobat) 

hope licenses will be procured by the agency? These are products obtained via license by OIG.

101
5.1.2.10. Data 

Integration

The products (Lexis Nexis Accurint, PMI Evidence Tracker) to 
be integrated, do these products expose API’s for integration 
or the Integration API’s need to be developed? If so, will we 

get enough documentation, data formats details and support to 
develop or use the APIs? 

Each API/Data exchange has different technical needs.  See RFP 
Section 5.2.2.3.  Technical documentation will be provided after 

contract award.  

102
5.1.2.10. Data 

Integration

Does Adobe Acrobat Integration mentioned in the RFP just to 
digitally sign the document or is there a plan to use Adobe 

cloud to store and manage the life cycle of the digital 
documents?

Adobe Acrobat is used for more than digital signatures.  Further, 
there is no intent to use Adobe for document life cycle.



103
5.1.2.10. Data 

Integration

Presume the external applications such as NYS eJustice, NYS 
DCJS Law Enforcement Statute Directory, OIG Record 

Retention Inventory, all exposes API’s that can be used to 
Integrate these applications with the new system or the 

Integration API’s need to be developed? If so, will we get 
enough documentation and support to develop or use the 

APIs? See RFP Section 5.2.2.3.

104 Section 2: Current State
What are the RDBMS systems or Database Systems currently 

used by LawManager and other legacy systems?

Information regarding LawManager can be found in RFP Section 2 
and at the following link:  

https://help.mitracloud.com/LawManager/6.4/LMWeb/lawmanager.h
tm#product_basics/

105
5.2.3. Legacy System 

Migration
What are the formats of documents, images, audio, video files 

that need to be migrated? This information will not be shared prior to contract award.

106 General
Should the new case management system support languages 

other than English?

The expectation is that other languages should be supported.  
Please visit https://ogs.ny.gov/new-york-state-language-access-law 

for information on the most utilized languages.

107 General

How many different user roles do you anticipate (e.g., Case 
workers, supervisors, system administrator)? How many users 

(estimated) will access the system? See RFP Section 5.7.3.

108 Budget

While the RFP doesn’t list a budget range, do you have any 
internal funding caps (grants, local funds) that might affect the 

scale or timeline? A budget has not been allocated for this project.

109 General

Would the State consider allowing offshore resources to do 
work on the project provided that they only have access to 
development and testing environments with no access to 

production systems or production State data? All work must be conducted within the United States.

110 General
Have you seen demonstrations of any similar systems prior to 
issuing this Solicitation? If so, will you share which systems?

OIG will not release this information through the Question and 
Answer process.

111 Pg 5: Section 2

What automations/integrations solutions are needed for the 
hotline/phone system? Is your current solution integrated with 

the phone system?

Our current system is not integrated with our phone system.  
Information on automations/integrations should be provided as part 

of the proposers Technical Proposal.

112 Pg 6: Section 2

Assessments are currently tracked outside the CMS system. 
What solution is used for this and would you want to migrate 

that information into the new solution? This is LawManager data.  See RFP Section 5.2.3.

113 Pg 6: Section 2

When creating files outside of the current solution, are the files 
coded in such a way as to enable the tracking back to a 
specific case? If so, would OIG require that the historical 

documents be migrated into the new solution? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

114
Pg 9: 5.1.1.1 Complaint 

Intake

How are the high-volume complaint worksheets submitted? 
Are these electronic worksheet (ie. Excel file) or a paper form? 

If there are multiple complaints related to the same entity, 
would we create separate cases for this?

High-volume worksheets are received electronically.  See RFP 
Amendment 1, Section 5.1.1.1 for separate cases.

115 Pg 10: 5.1.1.2

For referrals that are assigned to jurisdictional agencies, would 
OIG be interested in utilizing a portal that would allow tracking 
the communication back and forth between a representative(s) 

from the agency?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

116
Pg 12: 5.1.1.4 
Investigations

What functionality does the solution need to support for 
“Perform investigator(s) and agency case deconfliction." This information will not be shared prior to contract award.



117 Pg 18L 5.1.2.1
Does OIG have a specific solution for project management 

that we need to integrate to (ex  MS Project, Jira)?
OIG does not have a project/task management tool and does not 

have a preferred tool.

118 Pg 21: 5.1.2.15
What languages are needed for multi-lingual support for the 

portal?
Please visit https://ogs.ny.gov/new-york-state-language-access-law 

for information on the most utilized languages.

119 Pg 22 5.1.2.17
Are the worksheets in standard templates that are provided for 

submission or will inputs vary? This information will not be shared prior to contract award.

120
Pg 9: 5.1.1.1 Complaint 

Intake
Are there mandatory record retention timelines that need to be 

considered in the solution? See RFP Section 5.1.1.6.

121 Pg 15: 5.1.1.8.1
Any particular formatting file types needed for evidence 

records ?
There is no particular electronic file format/type that evidence 

records need to be limited to.

122 Pg 13: 5.1.2.5
What is currently being used for Reporting? 

Programs/Applications etc OIG currently utilizes Microsoft Excel for this function.

123 Pg 49:  13.7.2

If a firm is both minority and women-owned, can they qualify 
for the full 30% or are separate vendors needed for each 

category? One firm can not be counted towards both 15% goals.

124 Pg 43: Section 9
Does this response need to be in a specific format? (i.e. Word 

Document, PowerPoint) See RFP Section 9.

125 Pg 87

How many named end users will need access to the system, 
for purposes of calculating licensing costs? Should we provide 

licensing for 250 employes as noted on pg. 87 of the RFP? See RFP Section 5.7.1 and Form 1:  Cost Proposal.

126 Appendix I - 5.07
Are you currently using a system that automates intake of 

hotline phone calls and transcription of audio?
OIG does not currently use a system that automates intake of 

hotline phone calls and transcription of audio.

127
Appendix I - 5.1.2.7 7.02- 

7.05

Do you have specific use cases in mind for this AI-driven 
functionality? 

a.	Can you identify systems that you have already seen which 
satisfy these requirements? This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

128 Appendix I - 7.09
Do you have a GIS system that currently provides this 

functionality? OIG does not have a GIS system 

129 Appendix I - 13.01

Our company has a SOC 2 Type II certification and we host 
with AWS GovCloud, a FedRAMP-certified hosting provider. 

Does that satisfy this requirement?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

130 Appendix I - 13.15

Our support offering is built for up to five authorized users (e.g. 
administrators) and is available M-F 7:00AM – 9:00PM ET, 
except federal holidays. Support is available 24/7/365 for 

emergencies, such as a Severity I outage. Does this satisfy 
this requirement?

This information should be provided as part of the proposers 
Technical Proposal.

131 General / MBEWBE

This RFP has a goal to allocate 30% of the total effort to 
MBEWBE, but the requirement only accounts for 5% of the 

total score. Can you explain why? See NYCRR Title 5, Chapter XIV, § 142.3 and Form 6.1 and 6.2.

132 General
How many users will be in the system at any given time? What 

does usage look like for each of the 3 divisions? See RFP Section 5.7.1 and Form 1:  Cost Proposal.

133 General
How much storage will you need for the application to provide? 

1 Terabyte 2,3?  See RFP Section 5.2.3, 5.7.1 and Form 1:  Cost Proposal. 

134 General
Outside of email and AD authentication, it does not look like 

there are any integrations.  Please confirm.
See RFP Amendment 1, Section 5.1.1 and all other RFP Sections 

up to 5.1.2.19.

135 Section 5.115
How many reports will the vendor expect to build for the initial 

implementation? This information will not be shared prior to contract award.



136 Pg 1: MWBE Goal Is an MWBE contractor required for submission? See RFP Section 13.7-13.7.3 and associated forms.
137 General How many system users in total do you require? See RFP Section 5.7.1.
138 General What types of users, and how many of each are required? See RFP Section 5.7.3.

139 General
Is there any data migration required from your current or past 

system(s)? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

140 General
How many GBs of data would need to be imported (this would 

not include attachments like image, videos, pdfs, etc.)? See RFP Section 5.2.3.
141 General How many files can we expect to receive? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

142 General
Are there any issues with your security team using SFTP for 

data transfer? OIG has no preference.  See RFP Section 5.8.

143 General
Can a database schema be provided? (For example: in a 

schema document, Visio or any other visual representation.) See RFP Section 5.2.3.

144 General

What are the columns for each table? (Column headers would 
be ideal, but if that cannot be provided, the number of columns 

will suffice.) See RFP Section 5.2.3.

145 General

How are the files we receive linked? Is there a link table, or are 
there links within the tables themselves? (For example: the 

narrative file would have a column for link to person ID.) This information will not be shared prior to contract award.
146 General Can sample data (even scrubbed data) be provided? Sample data will not be shared prior to contract award.

147 General
In which format will the data be provided? (For example CSV, 

Excel, etc.) 
This information will be shared with the selected vendor in 

coordination with the migration vendor.  See RFP Section 5.2.3

148 General
Does the data come from a system that has a proprietary data 

format? See RFP Section 2.

149 General

Will the data contain any attachments that we'll be migrating? 
(images, videos, pdfs, etc.) If so, what is the volume and 

general type of attachments? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

150 General
Are there available APIs for the systems requested to be 

integrated?

Each API/Data exchange has different technical needs.  See RFP 
Section 5.2.2.3.  Technical documentation will be provided after 

contract award.  

151 General Information requested to be integrated? One-way or 2-way?

Each API/Data exchange has different technical needs.  See RFP 
Section 5.2.2.3.  Technical documentation will be provided after 

contract award.  

152 General
Is there a required go-live date that you would need the project 

to be completed by? If so, what is it? See RFP Section 5.2.1.

153 General

Will the vendor be required to develop any integrations as part 
of the initial implementation? IE are there integrations required 
to be developed before go-live, or can they wait until after go-

live? See RFP Section 5.2.1 and 5.2.2.3.

154 Pg 24: 5.2.3

What type of database is the source application 
(LawManager)? Can you share the data Dictionary of the 

database?

Information regarding LawManager can be found in RFP Section 2 
and at the following link:  

https://help.mitracloud.com/LawManager/6.4/LMWeb/lawmanager.h
tm#product_basics/

155 Pg 24: 5.2.3
What is the quality of the current data (%age of clean  or 

requiring cleansing)? This information will not be shared prior to contract award.



156 Pg 24: 5.2.3

Should files/documents of the closed cases, currently stored at 
a secure location be migrated to the new document 

management system? If required, what is the storage volume 
of the files to be migrated? See RFP Section 5.2.3.

157 Pg 24: 5.2.3
Is there a NYS preferred middleware tool for ETL/data 

migration and/or application integration? OIG does not have a preferred tool.

158 Pg 11: 5.1.1.3
Can you provide a list of the systems to be integrated and the 

number of integration points per system?

Please review the data exchange information in RFP Amendment 1, 
Section 5.1.1.1 and all other data exchange sections up to RFP 

Section 5.1.1.8.3 and note the number of exchanges may change in 
the future.

159 Pg 11: 5.1.1.3
What are the quality of these documents and are they all 

PDFs/images? Sample data will not be shared prior to contract award.

160 Pg 11: 5.1.1.3
Is it required for system to answer hotline phone call without 

human intervention? This is not a requirement of RFP Section 5.1.1.3.

161 Pg 15: 5.1.1.8.1

What integration options are there for PMI Evidence Tracking 
System? Is there technical support from the system to 

configure APIs to connect to? This information will not be shared prior to contract award.

162 Pg 19: 5.1.2.6

With regards to requirement 7.01, how many processes would 
be using ingestion of CSV to create/extract/analyze/transform 

data into records? See RFP Amendment 1, Section 5.1.1.1

163 Pg 19: 5.1.2.6
With regards to requirement 7.01, can you provide sample 

excel files? Sample files will not be shared prior to contract award.

164 Pg 19: 5.1.2.6

With regards to requirement 7.06, what is the use case of the 
NYS eJustice integration and what integration options are 

available to connect for data access? This information will not be shared prior to contract award.

165 Pg 19: 5.1.2.6
With regards to requirement 7.07, can you provide clarification 

and examples of  mapping software/link analysis? Sample files will not be shared prior to contract award.

166 Pg 19: 5.1.2.6
With regards to requirement 10.04, can you provide sample 

exports? Sample exports will not be shared prior to contract award.

167 Pg 21: 5.1.2.13

With regards to requirement 13.14, what type of 
documentation (training, job aids, informational, support, etc) 
would we expected to be provided? Is this with regards to the 

staff training documentation or technical documentation?
This information should be provided as part of the proposers 

Technical Proposal.

168 Pg 29: 5.7.1

Does the 250 users referenced in section 5.7.1 include 
External CMS Partners? If not, how many External CMS 

Partner users are expected?
The 250 User Licenses does not include external users.  It is not 

known how many external users will utilize the system.
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